
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

TAMPA DIVISION 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

INTEGRITY FINANCIAL 
ENTERPRISES, LLC, a limited liability 
company, also d/b/a INFINITE FINANCIAL 
and NATIONAL BENEFIT EXCHANGE, 

NATIONAL BENEFIT EXCHANGE, 
INC., a corporation, and 

ROBERT JAMES FISCHBACH, 
individually and as an officer of INTEGRITY 
FINANCIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC and 
NATIONAL BENEFIT EXCHANGE, INC., 

Defendants. 

Case No. 8:08-cv-914-T-27 MSS 

DEFAULT JUDGMENT AND ORDER FOR PERMANENT 1N.TUNCTION AND 
MONETARY RELIEF AGAINST DEFENDANTS INTEGRITY FINANCIAL 

ENTERPRISES, LLC AND NATIONAL BENEFIT EXCHANGE, INC. 

BEFORE THE COURT is Plaintiff's Motion for Default Judgment against 

Defendants Integrity Financial Enterprises, LLC and National Benefit Exchange, Inc. (Dkt. 

33), to which no Defendant has responded. 

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission ("FTC" or "Commission"), commenced this 
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action on May 13, 2008 by filing its 
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8. Defendants, directly or through their telemarketer, have made false or misleading 

statements in connection with the telemarketing of advance-fee credit cards, in 

violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), and the TSR, 16 C.F.R. 

Part 310. 

9. Defendants have requested and received payment of a fee in advance of consumers 

obtaining a credit card when Defendants have guaranteed or represented a high 

likelihood of success in obtaining or arranging for the acquisition of a general 

purpose credit card, such as a Mastercard, in violation of the TSR, 16 CFR 5 

3 10.4(a)(4). 

10. As alleged in Paragraph 8 of the Complaint, which is deemed to be admitted for the 

purposes 
which 



Corp., 87 
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is a separate document within the meaning of the term "document." 

"Person" 
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receive a general-purpose credit card, such as a Mastercard or Visa; 

3. Consumers may cancel or change their order and avoid the debiting 

of their bank accounts; or 

4. Consumers' cancellation requests will be honored; 

B. Making or assisting others in making, expressly or by implication, any false 

or misleading statement or representation of material fact in connection with 

any offer of any good or service, including, but not limited to: 

1. The total cost to purchase, receive, or use, and the quantity of, any 

goods or services that are subject to the sales offer; 

2. Any material restrictions, limitations, or conditions to purchase, 

receive, or use the goods or services; or 

3. Any material aspect of the nature or terms of a refund, cancellation, 

exchange, or repurchase policy for the goods or services; 

Violating, or assisting others in violating, any provision of the TSR, 16 

C.F.R. Part 3 10, including, but not limited to: 
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cancellation, exchange, or repurchase policies, and 

3. Section 310.4(a)(4) of the TSR, 16 C.F.R. 5 310.4(a)(4), by 



sole discretion, that direct redress of consumer injury is wholly or partially 

impracticable, or funds remain after the restitution is completed, the 

Commission may apply any remaining funds for such other equitable relief 

(including consumer information remedies) as it determines to be reasonably 

related to Defendants' practices alleged in the Complaint. Any funds not 

used for such equitable relief shall be deposited to the United States Treasury 

as disgorgement. Defendants shall have no right to challenge the 

Commission's choice of remedies under this Section. This judgment for 

equitable monetary relief is solely remedial in nature and is not a fine, 

penalty, punitive assessment, or forfeiture. 

D. Defendants IFE and NBE are hereby required, in accordance with 3 1 U.S.C. 

3 7701, to furnish to 



such account to the Commission within ten (10) business days of receiving notice of this 

Order by any means, including, but not limited to, via facsimile. Such turnover or payment 

shall be made by the methods 



number, e-mail address, or other identifying information of any person who 



45 and 69; 

2. posing as consumers and suppliers to Defendants, their employees, or 

any other entity managed or controlled in whole or in part by any 

Defendant, without the necessity of identification or prior notice; and 

C. Defendants each shall permit representatives of the Commission to interview 

any employer, consultant, independent contractor, representative, agent, or 

employee who has agreed to such an interview, relating in any way to any 

conduct subject to this Order. The person interviewed may have counsel 

present. 

Provided, however, that nothing in this Order shall limit the Commission's lawful use of 

compulsory process, pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 9s 49, 

57b-1, to obtain any documentary material, tangible things, testimony, or information 

relevant to unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce (within the meaning 

of 15 U.S.C. § 45(a)(l)). 
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VII. COMPLIANCE REPORTING BY DEFENDANTS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in order that compliance with the provisions of 
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include, but not be limited to: 

1. A copy of each acknowledgment of receipt of this Order, obtained 

pursuant to the Section titled "Distribution of Order;" and 

2. Any other changes required to be reported under Subsection A of this 

Section. 

C. Each Defendant shall notify the Commission of the filing of a bankruptcy 

petition by such Defendant within fifteen (15) days of filing. 

D. For the purposes of this Order, Defendants shall, unless otherwise directed 

by the Commission's authorized representatives, send by overnight courier 

all reports and notifications required by this Order to the Commission, to the 

following address: 

Associate Director for Enforcement 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N. W., Room NJ-2 122 
Washington, DC 20580 
Re: FTC v. Integrity Financial Enterprises, LLC, 
Civil Action No. 8:08-CV-914-T-27 MSS (M.D. Fla.). 

Provided, that, in lieu of overnight courier, Defendants may send such reports or 

notifications by first-class mail, but only if Defendants contemporaneously send an 

electronic version of such report or notification to the Commission at: 

E. For purposes of the compliance reporting and monitoring required by this 

Order, the Commission is authorized to communicate directly with each 

Defendant. 
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VIII. RECORD KEEPING PROVISIONS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of eight (8) years from the date of 

entry of this Order, Defendants and their agents, employees, officers, corporations, and those 

persons in active concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of this Order 

by personal service or otherwise, where engaged in or assisting others engaged in the 

advertising, promotion, offering for sale, distribution or sale of any credit-related product, 

service, or program, are hereby restrained and enjoined from failing to create and/or retain 

the following records: 

A. Accounting records that reflect the cost of goods or services sold, revenues 

generated, and the disbursement of such revenues; 

B. Personnel records accurately reflecting: the name, address, and telephone 

number of each person employed in any capacity by such business, including 

as an independent contractor; that person's job title or position; the date upon 

which the person commenced work; and the date and reason for the person's 

termination, if applicable; 
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E. Copies of all sales scripts, training materials, advertisements, or other 

marketing materials; and 

F. All records and documents necessary to demonstrate full compliance with 

each provision of this Order, including, but not limited to, copies of 

acknowledgments of receipt of this Order required by the Sections titled 

"Distribution of Order" and "Acknowledgment of Receipt of Order" and all 

reports submitted to the FTC pursuant to the Section titled "Compliance 

Reporting." 

IX. DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of five (5) years from the date of 

entry of this Order, Defendants shall deliver copies of the Order as directed below: 

A. Each Defendant must deliver a copy of this Order to (1) all of its principals, 

officers, directors, and managers; (2) all of its employees, agents, and 

representatives who engage in conduct related to the subject matter of the 

Order; and (3) any business entity resulting from any change in structure set 

fmth in Subsectiora A of the Section titled ''C~rnp!im~:: Rep~rtkng." For 



change in structure. 

B, Defendants must secure a signed and dated statement acknowledging receipt 

of the Order, within thirty days of delivery, from all persons receiving a copy 

of the Order pursuant to this Section. 

X. ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ORDER 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each Defendant, within five (5) business days 

of receipt of this Order as entered by the Court, must submit to the Commission a truthful 

sworn statement acknowledging receipt of this Order. 

XI. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court retains jurisdiction of this matter for 

purposes of construction, modification, and enforcement of this Order. 

XII. SCOPE OF ORDER 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Order resolves only claims against 

Defendants IFE and NBE, and does not preclude the Commission from initiating further 

action or seeking any remedy against any other persons or entities, including, without 

iimiraion, persons or entities who may be subject to portions of this Order virtue of 

actions taken in concert or participation with Defendants, and persons or entities in any type 

of indemnification or contractual relationship with Defendants. 

XIII. ENTRY OF THIS DEFAULT JUT)C;mN-T 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 54(b), 

that there is no just reason for delay, and the Clerk of the Court immediately shall enter this 
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